@ lIFortsmouth
CITY COUNCIL  Pyblic Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING

LICENSING COMMITTEE

FRIDAY, 10 MARCH 2017 AT 9.30 AM
EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM, FLOOR 3 OF THE GUILDHALL, PORTSMOUTH

Telephone enquiries to Lucy Wingham 02392 834662
Email: lucy.wingham@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please
notify the contact named above.

Licensing Committee Members:

Councillors Julie Bird (Chair), Hannah Hockaday (Vice-Chair), Dave Ashmore, Jennie Brent,
Ken Ellcome, Paul Godier, Scott Harris, Steve Hastings, Suzy Horton, Leo Madden, Lee Mason,
Stephen Morgan, Steve Pitt, David Tompkins and Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE

Standing Deputies
Councillors Ryan Brent, lan Lyon, Hugh Mason, Darren Sanders and Rob Wood

(NB  This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be
taken. The request should be made in writing to the relevant officer by

12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation
(eg. for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted. Contact: Lucy
Wingham as listed above.

AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Members' Interests
3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 February 2017 (Pages 3 - 4)

RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Licensing
Policy Committee held on 22 February 2017 be agreed as a correct record
and signed by the chair.


http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/

4 Annual Review of Licensing Fees (Pages 5 - 34)

Purpose

The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider a review of the
non-statutory fees charged for licences/registrations which are administered
by the Licensing Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

a) That the Licensing Committee note the comments of this report and
determine the level of fee to be adopted;

b) That the approved fees be implemented with effect from 1 April 2017 unless
otherwise stated within the report; and

c) That the Director of Culture and City Development be given authority to
advertise, (where appropriate) such fees and charges that are subject to
any formal public statutory consultation.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the
meeting's venue.




Agenda ltem 3

LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF A MEETING of the Licensing Committee held on Wednesday, 22
February 2017 at 9.30 am at the Guildhall, Portsmouth.

Present

Councillors Julie Bird (Chair)
Hannah Hockaday (Vice-Chair)
Dave Ashmore
Jennie Brent
Paul Godier
Steve Hastings
Leo Madden
Lee Mason
David Tompkins

Apologies for Absence (Al 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Suzy Horton, Gerald Vernon-
Jackson, Stephen Morgan and Ken Ellcome. Standing deputy Councillor Ryan Brent
was in attendance for Councillor Ellcome.

Declarations of Members' Interests (Al 2)
There were no declarations of interest.
Minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 February 2016 (Al 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Licensing Policy Committee held on 24 February
2016 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the chair.

The Gambling Act 2005 - Draft Statement of Licensing Policy (Al 4)

The Licensing Manager introduced the report. Members sought clarification on Fixed
Odds Betting Terminals (FOBTSs) and betting shops. Following a discussion the
Licensing Manager agreed to seek further information regarding the restrictions in
relation to the amount of betting premises under planning legislation and agreed to
circulate this information to the Planning and Licensing Committee members. The
Licensing Manager also agreed to circulate information to the Licensing Committee
members on the categories of gaming machines including limits on stakes and
prizes.

RESOLVED that the Licensing Committee agrees the draft Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Licensing Policy as set out in Appendix A; and instructs the Licensing
Manager to undertake a process of consultation and to prepare a final draft of the
policy statement for further consideration by the Committee by no later than the end
of July 2017, and for subsequent approval by the full Council.

1
Page 3



The Licensing Act 2003 - Draft Statement of Licensing Policy (Al 5)

The Licensing Manager introduced the report. Members sought clarification on the
Late Night Levy and the Cumulative Impact Zone in particular CCTV in Guildhall
Walk. Members also requested that the information contained within paragraph 2.2
in respect of City Deal sites be amended to delete this reference.

RESOLVED that the Licensing Committee agrees, with any necessary amendments,
the draft statement of licensing policy prepared in accordance with Section 5 of the
Act as set out in Appendix A; and instructs the Licensing Manager to undertake a
process of consultation and to prepare a final draft of the policy for further
consideration by the Committee and approval by the Council by no later than end of
July 2017.

The meeting concluded at 10.35 am.

Signed by the chair, Councillor Julie Bird.

2
Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 10 MARCH 2017

Subject: ANNUAL REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES
Report by: LICENSING MANAGER

Wards affected: ALL

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No
1. Purpose of report

3.1

3.2

The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider a review of the non-
statutory fees charged for licences/registrations which are administered by the
Licensing Committee.

Recommendations

a) That the Licensing Committee note the comments of this report and
determine the level of fee to be adopted;

b) That the approved fees be implemented with effect from 1 April 2017
unless otherwise stated within the report; and

c) That the Director of Culture and City Development be given authority to
advertise, (where appropriate) such fees and charges that are subject
to any formal public statutory consultation.

Background

It has always been the aim of the Committee to work towards total cost
recovery, where possible, in undertaking the various licensing functions. For
some licences/permits, no fee is payable or the licensing fees are controlled
centrally by Government. In these cases, the Council cannot vary the fees to
take into account local administrative costs.

However, members should be aware that the EU Services Directive 2009 makes
specific provisions in relation to the setting of fees for certain types of licences.
In general terms, charges must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of
the processes associated with a licensing scheme. Councils must not use fees
to make a profit or act as an economic deterrent to deter certain business types
from operating within an area.

Pade 5
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

A copy of the LGA Guidance on locally set fees is attached as Appendix A
together with an update on the legal challenge for setting licensing fees in
respect of sex establishments (Hemmings v Westminster City Council) outlining
the ruling of the European Court of Justice in November 2016.

In summary, the above case and the final ruling of the European Court of Justice
confirmed that Licensing Authorities were not permitted to use the fee setting
mechanism to raise revenue for the Council in accordance with the provisions of
the EU Services Directive. It confirmed that licensing authorities were permitted
to charge for the cost of the administration of the licensing regime including
compliance checks on licensed premises but the compliance aspect of the
licensing fee should not be charged upon application but split between an initial
application fee and, if the licence was subsequently granted, an additional fee
should be payable to recognise any compliance costs.

Given that this ruling was only published at the latter part of 2016, further work
will now need to be undertaken by the Licensing Authority in the forthcoming
financial year (17/18) to enable full compliance with the Courts ruling,
specifically division and allocation of all on costs associated with the
authorisation and application procedures and the subsequent compliance costs
should be a licence be granted.

On 5 November 2008, the Licensing Committee resolved that it would review, on
an annual basis, those fees where the Council has discretion to set the amount
to be charged (as opposed to statutory fees which have been fixed by
Parliament) to take into account inflationary and other increased costs (Minute
No. 15/08 refers).

Due to increasing budget pressures on the Council, the Committee will need to
consider whether it wishes to continue to work towards the licensing service
achieving total cost recovery on those fees where it has the discretion to set the
amount and thereby reducing any deficit which has been identified and
otherwise has to be met by the Council tax payer.

To achieve this objective, the Licensing Service in conjunction with Financial
Services have developed a model to undertake a thorough analysis of the costs
associated with each of the various licensing functions and what increases, if
any, are necessary to the existing licence fees to meet total cost recovery.

This analysis took into account the on-costs for employees, supplies and
services, agency and other contracted services so that the licensing budget
meets the cash limit requirement as set down in the Council's budget and
continues to rectify any deficits, or indeed identify any surplus.

At the meeting of the Licensing Committee on 15 January 2016, it was
determined that a staged approach over 5 years to achieve cost recovery for
private hire operators would continue subject to annual review but not for
hackney carriage vehicle and driver licences as analysis and revenue
projections appeared to establish that the increase in fees over the previous

Pade 6

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

years had addressed the deficit problem. However this position now needs to
be reviewed given further analysis this year as set out in the finance comments
at paragraph 7.4 of this report. Members will need to consider whether it is
appropriate and proportionate to re-commence a period of deficit recovery as
proposed in Appendix B of this report.

3.10 Summary of proposed changes for consideration
e Private Hire Vehicles and Drivers

No increases in fees are proposed. However it is proposed to amend the
current system of charging for a higher licence fee for those vehicles over
6 years old. Having regard to the change in policy* in respect of vehicle
age and testing requirements, it is proposed to introduce a single fee for
the grant or renewal of vehicle licences regardless of the age of the
vehicle.

The new minimum testing arrangements for vehicles are set out below:
0 - 3 years old - one full ("Max") mechanical inspection every year;

3 - 5 years old - two vehicle mechanical inspections every year, the
second test to be approximately 6 months after the first test and to
comprise of a "mini" test for lighting equipment, exhaust, fuel and
emissions; and vehicle body and structure. Should the vehicle fail ANY
of the mini test criteria, a full inspection and test will subsequently
be booked and completed, at the additional expense of the vehicle
proprietor.

5 - 8 years old - two full vehicle mechanical inspections every year.

The principle reason for recommending the introduction of a single fee is
to streamline the existing administrative arrangements in the interests of
greater efficiency and reduce the risk of error in terms of fees charged.

If members are not persuaded to charge a single fee then the alternative
option will be to introduce three separate vehicle licence fees to
recognise each of the above brackets of vehicle mechanical inspection
criteria.

Drug screening fees - It is proposed to decrease the current cost of drug
testing for driver licences. This is to reflect a reduction in the cost of the
test kits and laboratory fees and therefore the fee should reduce
accordingly.

! with effect from 1 April 2016, all private hire and hackney carriage vehicles shall be under 3 years of age
on first licensing and may remain licensed until 8 years of age (provided the vehicle is mechanically fit and
supported by an evidenced service history in line with the manufacturer's guidelines). Minute No. 9/2016
refers.

Pade 7
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



7.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

e Sex Establishment Licence and Scrap Metal Dealers fees

In accordance with the EU Services Directive and European Court of
Justice, the fees associated with the grant or renewal of sex
establishment licences and site licences in respect of scrap metal dealers
need to reduce to ensure that no surplus revenue is received in relation to
these licensing functions.

e Amenities on the Highway, Street Trading Consents,

No further increases in fees charged are considered necessary as the
current licence fee meets the cost of administration and compliance
checking.

e Hackney Carriage Vehicle and Driver Licences

As referred to in paragraph 3.9 above, a deficit totalling £40k has been
identified in relation to the hackney carriage licensing function (£13k in
respect of vehicles and £27k in respect of drivers).

It has been proposed that recovery of this deficit is introduced over a 5
year period, subject to annual monitoring and adjustment where
necessary.

In addition, it is proposed to adopt a similar amendment as outlined for
private hire vehicles and replace the higher licence extension fee with a
single fee.
Reasons for recommendations
The reason for the recommendations is to ensure that the Committee consider
the principle of working towards the licensing service achieving total cost
recovery, where it has discretion to set fees, and to determine the appropriate
level of charges having regard to legislation, case law and LGA guidance.
Equality impact assessment (EIA)

No equality impact assessment is required as the review of the annual fees does
not represent a change in policy or provision of service.

Legal Implications

The legal implications are embodied within the report.

Finance Comments

The Licensing Committee have been made aware of recommendations in terms

of cost recovery and the amounts required to reduce/eliminate any deficit or
surplus on the licensing budget in terms of fees charged.

Pade 8

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

7.2 The recommendation put forward for consideration is based upon a thorough
analysis of the costs associated with each of the licensing functions.

7.3 It is acknowledged that the review of fees in 2016 identified that the projected
level of income for hackney carriages for the 2016/2017 fiscal year would be
sufficient based upon the existing fees at that time and it was therefore
recommended that there would be no requirement for the fees for vehicle and
driver licences to increase.

7.4 However, the income anticipated at that time has not met the projected level
and, taken together with an updated analysis of officer time, a deficit on the
activity is indicated. Therefore it is necessary for the Committee to review the
current level and determine the most appropriate method of reducing the
identified deficit of £13k in respect of hackney carriage vehicles and £27k in
respect of hackney carriage drivers. The committee may wish to consider
reinstating the staged approach for recovery over a five year period.

Options for working towards cost recovery are set out in Appendix B - Table of
Existing and Proposed fees.

7.5 Members should be cognisant that any decision as regards setting of fees that
cannot be shown to be justified or reasonable could give rise to legal challenge
by licence holders.

5,gnedby

Appendices:

Appendix A Copy of the LGA Guidance on locally set fees (including an update on the
European Court of Justice Ruling regarding Hemmings v Westminster City
Council;

Appendix B Table of Existing and Proposed Fees;
Appendix C Summary Analysis of the Licensing Budget.

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

Pade 9
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ......cooiiii (0] o

Signed by:

Pagé 10
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Local 18

Government
Association

Open for business

LGA guidance
on locally set fees




Page 12



LGA guidance
on locally set fees

Councils are responsible for administering a range of licences and approvals resulting from
both national legislation and discretionary functions that are agreed locally. For the majority of
these regimes the costs are recovered through fees set by each council and paid by the licence
applicant. Locally set fees are a vital means of ensuring that costs can be recovered by each
and every council, rather than relying on subsidy from local tax payers.

While the licensing role within local government may be long established, the decisions that are
being made by individual councils in this area are facing increased scrutiny from businesses,
the public and in the media, particularly in relation to fee setting. Recent case law resulting
from the European Services Directive, the introduction of new licences for scrap metal dealers
and the pending introduction of locally set fees for alcohol licensing have all placed an added
emphasis on the need for every council to set fees in a legally robust and transparent manner.

This guidance aims to help councils understand the full breadth of issues that should be
considered when setting local licence fees in order to meet legal obligations and provide the
necessary reassurances to local businesses. It does not contain a fees calculator because
this assumes a uniformity of service design and associated costs and it is vital that councils
are free to design the service that best serves the needs of their community and recover costs
accordingly.

Fage 15

LGA guidance on locally set fees 3



1.Key issues

Understanding businesses and supporting growth

Councils across the country are working hard to encourage economic growth in their area by
providing practical support to businesses, tackling barriers to growth and creating the right
conditions for businesses to thrive again. Regulation and licensing are key parts of the support
package available to businesses through their council.

In the risk based world of regulation, licensing has become an anomaly that can imply a
standard approach is required for every business, in so far as every business is required to
apply for a licence. This contrasts with the operation of Trading Standards services where,
broadly, the legislation sets out expectations and all businesses are expected to meet them with
no paperwork needed. However, where it is appropriate and proportionate, licensing provides
the opportunity to impose specific conditions to tackle issues in specific areas or properties that
may not otherwise be available if the licensing system were not in place.

While we cannot alter the law that governs each licensing regime easily, it is possible to
consider how resources can be focused on risk; whether business support is effective and
how the burden of inspections can simply be removed where it is not necessary. A streamlined
approach to licensing will ensure that fees are kept to a minimum and businesses can be
encouraged to prosper.

Designing your service based on local priorities and need

While economic growth is a priority for every council in the country, there is also the need to
ensure that licensing regimes can continue to protect communities and visitors; manage public
health risks; and remain responsive to local concerns. The balance of all these factors, including
the drive to encourage business growth, will vary for each local area. Councils can take the
opportunity to work with businesses, community groups and residents to design a licensing
service based on local priorities and understand the implications that this will have for the fees
charged.

How does the European Services Directive impact on
locally set licence fees?

The European Services Directive' aims to make it easier for service and retail providers to
establish a business anywhere within Europe. The principle of ensuring that regulation is
transparent and that the burdens placed on businesses are kept to a minimum resonates
entirely with the way councils work. However, the legal requirements in the Directive do have
practical implications for local licensing regimes, including fee setting.

1 EU Services Directive - http://tinyurl.com/EUServD

Page 14

4 LGA guidance on locally set fees



Further guidance about the entirety of the European Services Directive is available on the
Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) website?. Councils should specifically
note that the Directive does not apply to licensing of taxi or gambling activities, however,

the principles remain a helpful way of providing a transparent and business-friendly approach
to licensing.

Principles of the Services Directive

The general principles of the Services Directive apply to all processes and administrative
procedures that need to be followed when establishing or running a service or retail business,
including the setting, charging and processing of fees for licences. The core principles of the
Directive — non-discriminatory; justified; proportionate; clear; objective; made public in advance;
transparent and accessible — apply to fee setting and are already practiced by a large number
of councils with the aim of ensuring a fair and transparent approach for local businesses and
communities.

Most principles are self-explanatory, but the principle of ‘non-discrimination’ requires a little more
explanation. In the Services Directive it is defined as meaning “the general conditions of access
to a service, which are made available to the public at large by the provider [and] do not contain
discriminatory provisions relating to the nationality or place of residence of the recipient.”

This applies at the local level when considering fee setting meaning that all applicants must

be treated equally irrespective of location and/ or nationality. Councils should not, for instance,
seek to subsidise businesses operating in one geographical area by offering comparatively
lower fees than required of those operating in another. Such an approach discriminates against
those businesses located elsewhere in the locality.

Administering payment of fees

Under the Services Directive councils need to ensure that full details of any fees are easily
accessible online, including the ability to make payments online.

Councils should be able to separate out the cost of processing an initial application from those
costs associated with the on-going administration of a scheme, because this latter element
cannot be charged to unsuccessful licence applicants.

In practice, where the number of rejected applications is low, the simplest approach will be to
charge the full fee from the outset but to ensure that any rejected applications receive a refund
aligned to the on-going costs of delivering the licensing regime. Alternatively, where permitted
by legislation, councils can choose to charge an initial administration fee paid by all applicants
and only request a further fee from those applicants that are successful. Councils will need to
consider whether this approach will create additional work and chasing late payments could
have a detrimental impact on relations with businesses. Councils could opt to include the
payment of the second fee as a condition of the licence if this was possible under the individual
licensing laws.

2 BIS guidance on the EU Services Directive - https://www.gov.uk/eu-services-directive

Fage 15

LGA guidance on locally set fees 5



The process adopted and information available about this should be simple and cost effective
for both the council and businesses.

Reasonable and proportionate

The Directive also includes specific requirements that apply to the charging of fees. Charges
must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of the processes associated with a licensing
scheme. Councils must not use fees covered by the Directive to make a profit or act as an
economic deterrent to deter certain business types from operating within an area.

Hemming v Westminster

The degree to which fees and processes are proportionate has been tested in a legal challenge
brought against the fee charged by Westminster City Council for licensing sex establishments.
The case established a number of key points about setting fees under the Services Directive.

In Hemming v Westminster?, the Court of Appeal ruled that the fees set must not exceed the
costs of administering the licensing regime. This means the council was no longer able to
include the cost of enforcement against unlicensed sex establishment operators when setting
the licence fee, although the cost of visits to licensed premises to monitor compliance could be
recovered through fees.

The judgement found that the annual reviews conducted by an officer of Westminster City
Council were no substitute for determinations by the council. The judge rejected the council’s
submission that the fee had been fixed on an open-ended basis in 2004 so that the fee rolled
over from one year to the next. Westminster City Council was consequently ordered to repay
fees charged over that period.

A full briefing on the case can be found on the LGA website*. The case is on-going at the time of
writing and decisions may yet be appealed by Westminster City Council.

Keeping fees under review

Fees should be broadly cost neutral in budgetary terms, so that, over the lifespan of the licence,
the budget should balance. Those benefitting from the activities permitted by the various
licences should not, so far as there is discretion to do so, be subsidised by the general fund.

To ensure that fees remain reasonable and proportionate it is necessary to establish a regular
and robust review process. This has particular advantages in the early stages of a new licensing
regime, as with the Scrap Metal Dealers Act, where fees have been set on best guess estimates
of the number of applications that will be received.

3 Court of Appeal ruling for Hemming v Westminster — 24 May 2013
http://cornerstonebarristers.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/Hemming-APPROVED-Judgement.pdf
4 http://www.local.gov.uk/regulatory-services-and-licensing

Page 16

6 LGA guidance on locally set fees



Annual reviews allow for the fine tuning of fees and allow councils to take steps to avoid either
a surplus or deficit in future years. This will not immediately benefit licence holders where the
licence has been granted for a number of years and paid for in a lump sum, but will ensure new
entrants to the licensing scheme are charged appropriately.

Where fees charged result in a surplus, Hemming v Westminster stated that this surplus

must be used to reduce the fees charged in the following year. It is possible to extend the
reinvestment of the surplus over more than one year®, but this will need careful consideration
about whether contributors may leave the licensing system over that period and therefore lose
out on the return. Deficits can similarly be recovered®, although where there is a significant
deficit, councils may want to consider how recovery can be undertaken over more than one year
so as not to financially harm otherwise viable businesses.

The case of R v Tower Hamlets LBC (1994)” may also be of relevance, as the High Court
indicated that “a council has a duty to administer its funds so as to protect the interests of what
is now the body of council tax payers”.

Open route for challenge

In the interests of transparency it is helpful to give an indication of how the fee level has been
calculated; the review process in place and a contact method for businesses to query or
challenge the fees. Open consultation with businesses and residents to design a local service,
including understanding the implications for fees, helps to provide a robust answer to challenge.

It may also prove helpful to engage elected members in the scrutiny of fees. They will use their
knowledge as local representatives to consider councils’ assumptions and challenge them
where necessary.

Councils may want to consider the following elements when setting licence fees. It should
be noted that this list is for consideration only, as councils may choose not to charge for all
the elements listed, or there may be additional areas of work carried out during the licensing
process that were not highlighted during the development of this guidance.

Individual pieces of legislation may also have specific items that may or may not be chargeable
under the scheme. The lists below will apply for most schemes, but should always be checked
against the relevant piece of legislation. If councils have any concerns, they should seek the
advice of their in-house legal department.

5 R v Manchester City Council ex parte King (1991) 89 LGR 696. http://tinyurl.com/qyc97bz

R v Westminster City Council ex parte Hutton (1985) 83 LGR 516.

7 R v London Borough of Tower Hamlets ex parte Tower Hamlets Combined Traders Association, 19 July 1993; [1994] COD 325
QBD Sedley J. Although the decision was about the London Local Authorities Act 1990, it would appear to have general effect
as a principle. http://tinyurl.com/oxmfuj6

[e)]

rFage 1/

LGA guidance on locally set fees 7



2. So what can be included
in a licence fee?

Initial application costs could include:

» Administration — This could cover basic office administration to process the licence
application, such as resources, photocopying, postage or the cost of handling fees through
the accounts department. This could also include the costs of specialist licensing software to
maintain an effective database, and printing licences.

+ Initial visit/s — This could cover the average cost of officer time if a premises visit is required
as part of the authorisation process. Councils will need to consider whether the officer time
includes travel. It would also be normal to include ‘on-costs’ in this calculation. Councils will
need to consider whether ‘on-costs’ include travel costs and management time.

» Third party costs — Some licensing processes will require third party input from experts,
such as veterinary attendance during licensing inspections at animal related premises.

» Liaison with interested parties — Engaging with responsible authorities and other
stakeholders will incur a cost in both time and resources.

+ Management costs — Councils may want to consider charging an average management fee
where it is a standard process for the application to be reviewed by a management board or
licensing committee. However, some councils will include management charges within the
‘on-costs’ attached to officer time referenced below.

» Local democracy costs — Councils may want to recover any necessary expenditure in
arranging committee meetings or hearings to consider applications.

» On costs — including any recharges for payroll, accommodation, including heating and
lighting, and supplies and services connected with the licensing functions. Finance teams
should be able to provide a standardised cost for this within each council.

* Development, determination and production of licensing policies — The cost of
consultation and publishing policies can be fully recovered.

+ Web material — The EU Services Directive requires that applications, and the associated
guidance, can be made online and councils should effectively budget for this work.

» Advice and guidance — This includes advice in person, production of leaflets or promotional
tools, and online advice.

+ Setting and reviewing fees — This includes the cost of time associated with the review, as
well as the cost of taking it to a committee for approval.

Page 18

8 LGA guidance on locally set fees



Further compliance costs could include:

+ Additional monitoring and inspection visits — Councils may wish to include a charge for
risk based visits to premises in between licensing inspections and responding to complaints.
As with the initial licensing visit, councils can consider basing this figure on average officer
time, travel, administration, management costs and on costs as suggested above.

» Local democracy costs — Councils may want to recover any necessary expenditure in
arranging committee meetings or hearings to review existing licences or respond to problems.

* Registers and national reporting — some licensing schemes require central government
bodies to be notified when a licence is issued. The costs of doing this can be recovered.

Unrecoverable costs

It is worth considering that the costs of defending appeals in the magistrate’s court or via judicial
review can be recovered through the courts. Including these costs within the fees regime could
lead to recovering the costs twice, which would be inconsistent with the Services Directive.

Hemming v Westminster also means that costs of enforcement action against unlicensed
premises cannot be recovered through the licence fee.

There is currently no guidance or case law describing the point at which recoverable compliance
costs switch over to unrecoverable enforcement costs. It should be noted that Hemming v
Westminster is likely to be appealed to the Supreme Court with a possible reference being
made to Europe for determination. If that happens, there may be more to follow on this issue
with, hopefully, greater clarification on the legal position. We are aware that some councils have
drawn the line at the point where it looks probable that the licence will be revoked, while others
include everything up until the point where the appeals goes to the magistrates’ court. These
approaches have not yet been tested in court.

Further support

The practical approach to designing a local licensing service, allocating costs accurately and
considering legal implications can be a difficult task; therefore it is strongly recommended that
licensing teams work with their legal advisors and finance teams to make the best use of all
expertise.

In addition, councils should consider working collaboratively with neighbouring authorities to
provide mutual support. Working with other councils and reviewing fees set by similar authorities
can be an extremely valuable way of ensuring that fees are not perceived to be disproportionate
by businesses.

Fage 19

LGA guidance on locally set fees 9



Acknowledgments

This document was put out to public consultation between 5 and 29
November 2013. It has been reviewed and cleared by the LGA's in-house
legal team and external Counsel.

We are very grateful to all those listed below who responded to the consultation exercise:
The Home Office

Bolton Council

Bristol City Council

Broadland District Council

Members of the LGA Licensing Forum

Oxford City Council

Southampton City Council

West of England Group of Local Authorities

Page 20



Page 21



Local 18

Government

Association

Local Government Association
Local Government House

Smith Square

London SW1P 3HZ

Telephone 020 7664 3000
Fax 020 7664 3030

Email info@local.gov.uk
www.local.gov.uk

© Local Government Association, January 2014

For a copy in Braille, larger print or audio,
please contact us on 020 7664 3000.
We consider requests on an individual basis.

L14-42 Page 22



LGA advice note - European Court of Justice ruling in
Hemming v. Westminster case
December 2016

Purpose

This note provides advice to LGA members on the issue of licence fees, following
the recent European Court of Justice (ECJ) ruling in the Hemming v. Westminster
case relating to licensing fees for sex establishments. The case relates to the
correct interpretation of the 2006 EU Services Directive, which is applied in the
UK by the Provision of Services Regulations 2009. However, the Directive does
not apply to taxis or gambling activities.

Background

In April 2015, the Supreme Court ruled in favour of Westminster City Council in a
long running dispute relating to the licence fees charged to a group of sex
establishments in Westminster. The Supreme Court overturned an earlier Court of
Appeal ruling by concluding that the Services Directive 2006 does not prevent
licensing authorities from charging fees that are proportionate to the cost of
administering and enforcing the relevant licensing framework, to those who
receive licences.

However, the Supreme Court sought an opinion from the ECJ regarding how such
fees should be levied. It identified two different approaches to charging fees:

e Whereby a council charged a fee upon application (covering the costs of
authorisation procedures) and a subsequent fee to successful applicants
(covering the cost of administering and enforcing the framework) - the
‘type A’ approach, or

¢ Where a council charged a single fee on application covering all costs, on
the basis that the relevant proportion of the fee would be refunded to
unsuccessful applicants — the ‘type B’ approach.

The Supreme Court found the type A approach of charging two fees is
permissible under the Services Directive but considered that the type B approach
of charging a single fee was more problematic.

European Court of Justice Ruling - implications
The ECJ published its ruling on the issue on 16 November 2016, following an
earlier opinion by the Advocate General in July 2016.

It is important to note that the ruling of the ECJ applies solely to the issue that
was referred to it, that is whether a type B approach to fee setting is compatible
with the Services Directive.

The ECJ ruled that the type B approach of fee setting is not compatible with the
Services Directive, arguing that the Directive ‘precludes the requirement for the
payment of a fee, at the time of submitting an application for the grant or renewal
of a authorisation, part of which corresponds to the costs relating to the
management and enforcement of the authorisation scheme concerned, even if
that part is refundable if that application is refused.’

'Page 23

Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, EC1M 5LG

Email info@local.gov.uk

Local ‘.

Government

Association

Briefing

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

www.local.gov.uk



Therefore, licensing authorities will need to amend their fee structures to
ensure that application fees relate solely to the cost of authorisation
procedures (ie, the costs associated with reviewing an application and granting /
refusing a licence). Under the type A approach, on which the Supreme Court
ruling still holds, successful licence applicants should subsequently be
charged an additional fee relating to the costs of administering and enforcing
the relevant licensing framework.

It is worth noting on this point that the Supreme Court view — which again still
holds — was that there is nothing to stop licensing authorities making the payment
of such a fee a condition of holding a licence. This would mean that authorities
could withhold a licence until payment of the relevant fee had been received:

‘...nothing in article 13(2) precludes a licensing authority from charging a fee for
the possession or retention of a licence, and making this licence conditional upon
payment of such fee. Any such fee would however have to comply with the
requirements, including that of proportionality, identified in section 2 of Chapter Il
and section 1 of Chapter IV. But there is no reason why it should not be set at a
level enabling the authority to recover from licensed operators the full cost of
running and enforcing the licensing scheme, including the costs of enforcement
and proceedings against those operating sex establishments without licences.’

Wider issues

The opinion of the Advocate General and the commentary contained in the
judgement of the ECJ went beyond the specific issues that had been referred to it,
and make further challenges on the issue of licensing fees highly likely. Of
particular concern, both the opinion and the commentary in the ruling appeared to
reopen the issue of whether including the costs of administering and enforcing
licensing regimes within licence fees is compatible with the Services Directive,
with a strong indication that the Advocate General and ECJ believed that it is not.
While the Supreme Court’s view on this issue remains in place at the
current time, meaning councils can continue to include these costs in their
licence fees, it seems inevitable that there will be a further challenge on this
issue at some point in future.

Claims for restitution

As has happened already, licensing authaorities will inevitably receive claims for
restitution following the ruling of the ECJ. Some opportunistic businesses and
legal advisors are likely to seek reimbursement of the whole of previously paid
type B licence fees, on the grounds that they have now been ruled incompatible
with the Services Directive. However, the only legitimate claim for restitution from
type B fees relates to the loss of interest that a licence holder can be deemed to
have suffered by virtue of paying the entirety of the fee upfront, rather than the fee
being split into two payments on application and on successfully being awarded a
licence.

Claimants should be expected to identify what they think these realistically
minimal costs amount to. However, in order to defend these claims, councils will
need to be able to identify the proportions of their fees that related to authorisation
procedures and to administration and enforcement.

Page 24

Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, EC1M 5LG

Email info@local.gov.uk

Local ‘.

Government

Association

Briefing

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

www.local.gov.uk



Next steps

The LGA is holding discussions with Government about this issue, and will
continue to emphasise the need for licensing regimes to be self-funding, a view
which we believe Government shares. The long term outcome of this case is
clearly closely linked to future negotiations on the terms of Britain’s exit from the
European Union, and this will therefore be a key priority for us in our work on
Brexit.

We would be grateful if any council receiving a new challenge on licence fees and
the issue of enforcement costs following the ECJ ruling could make us aware of
this at rebecca.johnson@Iocal.gov.uk

Page 25

Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, EC1M 5LG

Email info@local.gov.uk

Local ‘.

Government

Association

Briefing

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

www.local.gov.uk


mailto:rebecca.johnson@local.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



'S19431 91 0¢/6

"ON @InuIN “(saulepind sJainjoenuew ay) yum aul| ul AIoisly 991A19s paouspiae ue Aq papoddns pue Ji Ajjesiueyosuw si 8jo1yaA ay) pepiaoid) abe jo sieak
8 [un pasuaol| urewal Aew pue Buisuaol| sl uo abe Jo sieah ¢ Jepun aq [leys sa[oIyaA abeles Asuxoey pue aJiy aleAud ||B ‘L0z 1Udy | WOl 19318 YIAA z

"uoneynsuood 21jgnd 0} Jo8fqns due sevy Bsay ] |

00°6¥ 00'6Y 99} 19}-9Y pue uonoadsuj d|dIyaA
I | 00'¥%9 00’9 99] Jajsuel) J1eo-01-1e0 Asesodwa |
| 0092 00°'9¢ 99} UlWpY - 93] I9jsuel] 1ed-0}-1eD
T 009ZL | 0092l 89} JoJSUBJ) Jed-0}-JeD
00'S. 00'G. Ajuo Azenuer - Juein
‘Aa1j0d abe s|o1yan ul abueyo
ay) 0} psebal Buiaey jJuepunpal swod9q sey 99} _
sIy) se abieysd siy) Jo |[BAOWSI 10} SAOQE 9J0U 89S | JAOWNIY | 00692 UOISUS)XT [BMBUDY
‘(uonewloyul
Jayunj Joj yodal uiew ay} Jo 0| "¢ ydeibelsed aag)
"9|21yaA 8y} jo abe ay) Jo ssajpiebal saoua2I| 9DIYsA
Jo |emaual Jo juelb ay) Joj 93} s|buls e 8onpoJjul 0}
pasodoud si )1 ‘sjuswaiinbal bunss) pue abe oIy
Jo 0adsau ul ,Adljod ul ebueyd ay o} pJebas buineH | 007081 0091 jemauay Jo juelo)
, SOJIIYDA aulH djeAlld
i S20ua9d1] abejie) Aauyoey pue alH ajeAlld |
3 3 i
| -89 -994 :9dA ] 9oud9I
sjuswwo) | pasodouad | Bunsixg |

Z10Z T™ddV | 43M - AYIA0DTY LS0D FATIHIV OL ISYIHOIA/ASVYIUINI ALVIAIWNI - INO Livd

g XION3ddV

saa4 pasodoid pue Bunsixg jo ajqel

Page 27



00°0¥ 000t Jojsuel
00°€L 00'€L uoneuep
00°691 00691 jemauay
00°'96¢ 00'96¢ juelio)
‘Kemybiy ay} uo spoon
:s)unag Aemybiy ay) uo Ajuany
*$99} Aiojeloqe| pue sy 1s8} 4O }S00 Y} Ul uolonpal
e Jo9}ja4 0} Bulusaios Bnup Jo 102 Ul aseslda 00°0S 00°29 1s9] sbniqg
00'zL 002l Jdwaye ajeiedss yoe] - 1so) Aydeiboon)
00°LL 00°LL 89} uopessiulWpe sgd
00°¢cl 00°€lL abpeq juawaoe|doy
00°16¢ 00°.G¢ SIBdA ¢ - [eMaual Jo Juelo)
00'66 00°G6 1eak | - |emaual 10 Juelio)
:SI9ALIQ 24IH 3jeAlld
000l 0001 99 anss| ae|d
00°SY 00°'St JaquinN uonensibay spIysA Jo abuey)
00'S¥y 00°S¥ 99} UILUPY - J8JSUB. | Gf UONDSS |

:Sjuswiwo) pasodouad

3
1904

3
1994
Bunsix3

Adod ajeoijdnQ - eouel|dwod jo a)esnia)

:9dA ] 9oud9dIT

Page 28



'Jo8je S)e|paLWLl SABY 0} 89} Ul UOIONPaY

00°62 00'S2 20U82I7 Juswaoe|day

00°001 00001 uofjeLeA - @2uadl S10}99]|0D

00°00¢ 00°00¢ |[EMaUSI pUB JUBIS) - 90U89IT SJ0)93||0D

00°00L 00°001 uoljeleA - aouadl] a)is

"93} Ul uoonpal

1o} suosea. Joj Jodal jo | '¢ yde.Besed 85 | ,00°0S¥ | 00°0001L [EMBUal puUE juelc) - 92UddI 8)IS
:siajea( |ejo|y delog

00°9€LL | 00'9€LL [EMBUDI JO Juelc)
~ :sjuasuod Buipesy Joang

00°G. 0062 uoneolddy pleog v

00°20ZL | 00°202! ZWw 0z uey) Jojealb ease AemybiH

00'996 00'996 ZW 0z pue zw G| usamjaq eale AemybiH

0082, | 008Z. ZW G| pue zw 0| Usamiaq ease AemybiH

00°c8t 00°e8y CW 0| pue gw G usamjaq ease AemybiH

00°'v¥e 00'tvveC Zw G o} dn eale AemybiH

193} |[emausl Juanbasqns pue 8s) [eUolIppY

00°.21 00'2¢l 99} uoneoljdde [eniuj

:KemyBiy ay) uo saieys pue ajqey

Page 29



"193}43 3]eIP3LIWI dARY O] $33) Ul UOIINPIY

"pajuelb aq 8oua9||

e 9q p|noys s}s02 aoueljdwod Juanbasqns ay) pue
sainpe2o.d uonesijdde pue uolesuoyne ayj Yyum
pajeloosse S1S09 UO || JO UOHBIO||e PUB UOISIAIP
Ajjeayioads ‘Bujjna suno?d) ay) yum asueidwod

inj |qeus 0} (81/.1) Jeah |epueul Bujwodyuoy

ay)} ul fHuoyiny Buisuaol ay) Aq uayeuapun

9( 0} Pa3U MOU |[IM YIOM JBYUNS ‘9L0Z JO Ued tane|
ay) 1e paysiignd Ajuo sem Bujni sy} 1Y) UsAIS)

‘(@aueldwod Buipnioul) uonesuoyine pue
uopesjsiuiwpe Jo }1s09 a3y} sAoqe snjdins e ajeald
JOU S90p pasiel anUSASI 8Y) JBY) 2INSUS 0} SB 0S

S90U39|| Jo [emaual pue juelb sy} 0} uonejal ui a9y | 00°00S 00°0001 uoneuep
90Ua9l| 3Y} JO 102 BY) JaYUN) aonpaa o) Asessesau | 00°00S 000001 Jsjsued |

S| }1 ‘seay) jJo Bumes ayj 0} uolejal ul salsne Jo | 00°000° 00°008¢ |[EMaUDY
unog ueadoin3 ay) jo Buljni ay 0} psebal BuireH | ,00°000°G | 00°00F LI juels

‘sjuswysijqe)sy xag

:SjUBWIWIOY

3
1994
pasodoud

3
1994
Bunsixgy

:2adA ] 92ua921

Page 30



*(uonewuoyul Jaypunj Joy Yodal jo gL ¢ ydeibeled 8ag) "sajoiyan aly ayeaud sy :
'S99] JO MBIASY |enuue 0] Joalgns abueyd o) s|qel} 99 Aew pue Ajuo sasodind aAjjel)sn||l 1O} S1e SPJBMUO §1/810Z WOl UMOYS s884 )
‘uone}jnsuod 21gnd 0] Joalgns ale sa9) asay | 9
‘uoleynsuod d1qnd o) Joslgns aie sav) Bsay |

00ZEL | oozeElL 99) Uajsuel) 1ed-0}-1e)
¢ | JAONTY  JAOWIY | SAOWIY | JAOWIY | SAOWNIY | 00'L.€E UOISUDIX® - [emausy
, | 00°0€E 006LE 0080€ | 00962 | 00682 | 006LZ |lemaual Jo juels
1oSOIIYaA abeliie Aauyoey |
(zzinzoz) | (1ziozoz) | (0z/6102) | (64/8L02) | (81/LL0OT) 3
S v € 4 b 904 :9dA | 92ua9I
SjusWIWIO) | Jed A 394 | Jed) 994 | Jed) 994 | 1e3aA 394 | Jeap 334 | Bunsixgzy E

(oseauioul
pauue|d Jeak g e Jo JuawaduBWWOI3Y) £10Z TIYdY | 43M - AYIA0I3Y 1S0I FAIIHOV OL1 ISYIYONI AISVHI

S3ONIDIT YIAIRMA ANV STTIIHIA FOVIHHVI AINMOVH - 334HL LHvd

‘'sieaA G Jo pouad
B JOAO }JIO1JSp JUSLIND 3Y) 10914100 0} dapiwwo) Buisusar] | 00°00S€ 00°'080¢ 00°'G0.¢ sieaA G - [emMauayjuelS
ay) Aq yoeousdde paaibe snoiraid ay} ayeojdal sasy) asay | 00°00. 00919 00’ LYS JeaA | - |emauayueln)
;SiojesadQ auiH ajeAld |
3
(61/8L02) | (8LLLOZ) | 994 :adA ] aouadi
ISUBWIWIOY | G JBIA 394 | ¢ Jea) 394 | Bunsixgy 2

(sseasoul pauueld Jesj g BuioBuQ) £10Z YLV | 43M - AYIAO0IFY 1SOD FAIIHOV O1 ISVYIYONI ISVHd

JON3DI171 SHO1VHIdO F¥IH FLVAIYd - OML 1HVd

Page 31



'S99} JO MSIABI |lBehuue

0} 109[gns abueyo o} s|qel| oq Aew pue Ajuo sasodind sAnelISN||| 10} B1e SSOUBDI| JBALP JEDA € IO Jeak | J0 199dSal Ul SPIeMUO §1/gL0Z WOJ) UMOYS S99 )

‘sjusuiwon

00°0S 0029 188} sbnig
00CL 002l 1dwaye ajesedas yoe] - }se) Aydelboan)
001 00'LL 99} uoneJjsjuipe Sggd
00°clL 00°¢cl abpeq juswaoe|doy
00°09¢ 00°'8LY 00°'S.€ 00°CEE 00°68¢C 00'9t¢ SIBBA € - [eMaual Jo Juels)
00°.61 00'8LL 00°091 002vl 00°€Cl 00's0L Jes A | - [emaual Jo juel
:sJaAlq abelues AouyoeH |
000l 000l 99) anss| a)e|d
00°S¥ 00°'G¥y Jaquinu uonedsibas ajoiyaa jo abuey)

(zz/1202)

g

lea ) 994

(1z/0202)

14

Jea\ 994

(0z/6102)

€

lea ) 994

(61/8102)

[4

les A 994

99} UlWpY - J9JSUBI) Bf UOIDBS

(81/210¢2)

b

Jea A 994

3
1994

Bunysixg

Adoo gjeojidnQ - soueiduwiod Jo ajeoya)

:9dA] 9oudaoI

00'2¢s 00°2S 99) )s9)-a1 pue uooadsul S|2IYSA
00'99 0099 99} Jojsuel} Jed-0)-1ed Alelodws |
00°.¢ 00°'.¢ 99} Ulwpy - J9jsuel) Jed-0j}-Jed

Page 32



Aewwns /] z0" 20 Bumas £19) malnay 894 80uao\/ 191 Bumes 99\BuUISUSIINSHD 09E\SH\HIA\LOOHSIPY

(025°2) (Ls6°2) (sze‘ct) €16'6€ (£20°2) 886°L
(o08‘c) (96¥'9¢€) (sgo'ce) (zz0's21) (22¢'29¢€) (o1£'896)
0zl G0G'8Z 8z2'L2 G85'v9L 052'09¢ 662°9.S
(0z9°2) (1zi'e) (ZoLvL) 9L0p 856 zz8'st
(00g'e) (o9t'9¢) (000'sE) (z20's21) (9pL'vLE) (820°6265)
081l 6£g'L2 8€8'02 6£8'G91 ¥02'SLE 006065
(svz‘L) 2L (est‘e) ovL‘s 2l0C G6S°E
(00z'G1) (9s¥'9¢€) (s59'sg) (L10'svL) (092'61€) (z802sS)
zse'el 116'1¢ 991'2¢ 0GL'0G1 ze8'Lee 8/9°GSS
286°LL (1zL'vL) (rogct) vio'ol 020y ro‘Le
86801 (0L9'9¢) (695°2€) (006'0L1L) (952'cge) (2£6°205)
¥€0'L 68y'ze 69/l ¥16'02L 911'9.€ 8/6°6€S
doyg xag| Jopel] Jeallg AemybiH abelen 3l|H 9leAld
uo saljuswy AewjoeH
[emauay S$334 13S
3S 1S HOV OH Hd| ATIVOO1

ev€14102/20/8C

AYIAODTY
(139ang) 81/210Z2 IWOINI TVLOL
(139an4g) 84/2102 IUNLIANIIXT TVLOL

A¥3IA0D3N
(LSY23¥04d) 21/9L0Z IWOONI TVLOL
(LSVY23404) Z1/910Z HNLIANILX3 TVLOL

age 33

A¥3A0D3IY
(L39ang) 21/910Z IWODNI TVLOL
(139ang) 21/9102 I¥NLIANIHXT TV.LOL

AH3IAO0O3Y
(AvN1oV) 91/510Z INODNI TV.LOL
(AvNL1ov) 91/510Z IUNLIANIAX3 TVLOL

L1/910¢ Isedaloy

[9poIN A13A023)Y }S09
Buisuadi

o



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 February 2017
	4 Annual Review of Licensing Fees
	LPC20170310r4AppA
	LPC20170310r4AppA1
	LPC20170310r4AppB
	LPC20170310r4AppC


